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From: Madhu Soni

To: Morissette. Rachel

Subject: RE: missing information for newly received GRAS notice for FOS in infant formula
Date: Thursday, July 26, 2018 1:25:21 PM

Attachments: image002.png

Expert Panelists CVs- FOS IF GRAS.pdf

Dear Dr. Morissette,

Please accept my apology for the oversight. Please find attached, CVs of al the expert
panelists combined in onefile. If you have any questions, please let me know.

Best regards
Madhu

Madhu 6. Soni, PhD, FACN, FATS
Soni & Associates Inc.

749 46 Syuare

Vero Beach, F1, 32968, USA

Phone: +1-772-299-0746; Cell: +1-772-538-0104
WWw.Soniassociates.net

From: Morissette, Rachel [mailto:Rachel.Morissette@fda.hhs.gov]

Sent: Thursday, July 26, 2018 10:24 AM

To: Madhu Soni <sonim@bellsouth.net>

Subject: missing information for newly received GRAS notice for FOS in infant formula

Dear Dr. Soni,

I am the Consumer Safety Officer assigned to your recent GRAS notice for the intended use of FOS in
infant formula. Before | can file this notice, | need to clarify some missing information that | identified. On
page 52 of 64, Footnote 4 refers to attachments containing the CVs of the GRAS Panel; however, FDA
did not receive a copy of these attachments with the submitted notice. Can you please provide these
missing attachments to me via email at your earliest convenience? Once | receive those documents, | can
proceed with processing your filing letter.

Best regards,

Rachel

Rachel Morissette, Ph.D.
Consumer Safety Officer

Center for Food Safety and Applied Nutrition
Office of Food Additive Safety
U.S. Food and Drug Administration

rachel.morissette@fdahhs.gov
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Seventy three pages of Curriculum Vitae removed in accordance with the Privacy Act of
1974.



From: Kulas, Megan

To: Morissette, Rachel; West-Barnette, Shayla

Cc: Assar, Carrie; Tonucci, Linda H; Wolcoff, Suzanne
Subject: GRN 797 45-day meeting

Date: Thursday, September 27, 2018 10:04:46 AM

Good Morning Rachel,
I’'m the CSO assigned to this GRN (with mentoring support from Linda, this is my first one).

1. After reviewing the GRN, we have the one comment: On Page 12 the notification states:
“However, infant formulas manufacturers typically provide instructions with the infant
formula indicating that hot water should be used in the preparation of the liquid formula.
This should minimize the potential for C. sakazakii being present in the product served.”

This is not the practice in the US to label the product with mixing instructions using hot
water.

2. Additionally, we would like to discuss the following during the meeting, Page 16 “There are no
other sources of FOS or fructans in the diets of formula fed infants. Introduction of any foods
that might possibly contain FOS or other nondigestible carbohydrates would be at the
expense of formula...”

Please let me know if DBGNR has any questions/comments about ours above. Also, since | am
learning the ropes, any advice/feedback is greatly appreciated.

Looking forward to Monday’s discussion,
Megan

Megan Kulas, M.S.

Consumer Safety Officer

Infant Formula and Medical Foods Staff
Office of Nutrition and Food Labeling

Center for Food Safety and Applied Nutrition
U.S. Food and Drug Administration

Tel: (301) 796-8131
megan.kulas@fda.hhs.gov
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From: Madhu Soni

To: Morissette, Rachel

Subject: RE: questions to be addressed for GRN 000797
Date: Monday, October 15, 2018 2:49:42 PM
Attachments: image001.png

FOS GRAS IF FDA Query Response Final-1.pdf

Dear Dr. Morissette,

Please find attached a pdf file providing a point-by-point response to the agency queries related to
GRN 797. | hope the information and clarifications, along with some discussion in the response
addresses the queries. If you have any questions or need additional explanation, please let me know.
Thank you for the opportunity to provide this explanation.

Best regards
Madhu

Madhu 6. Soni, PhD, FACN, FATS
Soni & Associates Inc.

719 46 Square

Vero Beach, F1. 32968, USA

Phone; +1-772-299-0746; Cell: +1-772-538-0104
WIW.soniassociates.net

From: Morissette, Rachel [mailto:Rachel.Morissette@fda.hhs.gov]
Sent: Wednesday, October 3, 2018 12:09 PM

To: Madhu Soni <sonim@bellsouth.net>

Subject: questions to be addressed for GRN 000797

Dear Dr. Soni,
Please see attached questions to be addressed for GRN 000797.

In addition to the attached questions, we wanted to draw your attention to an issue that was raised by our
Infant Formula and Medical Foods Staff (IFMFS), from the office that administers the Infant Formula
Notification (IFN) program, who also reviewed the notice. On page 12 of the notice, NFBC states the
following:

“However, infant formula manufacturers typically provide instructions with the infant formula
indicating that hot water should be used in the

preparation of the liquid formula. This, should minimize the potential for C. sakazakii being
present in the product as served.”

IFMFS asked that | convey the message to you that labeling the product with mixing instructions using hot
water is NOT the practice in the United States. Please see 21 CFR 107.20, “Directions for use,” for
labeling requirements for preparation and use. Additionally, please see 21 CFR 106.55(e) for controls to
prevent adulteration from microorganisms. While this is not an issue for the current GRAS notice, if a
statement like this were included in the Infant Formula Notification itself, it would raise an issue with
IFMFS. | wanted to convey that message so you're aware of the fact that the quoted sentence would be
problematic in an IFN.

If you have any questions, please let me know.
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Dear Dr. Morissette,
RE: GRN 797 (Fructo-oligosaccharide GRAS notice for Infant Formula)

This responds to your email of October 3, 2018, regarding your queries that need to be
addressed for fructo-oligosaccharide (FOS) notice (GRN 797) submitted on behalf of New
Francisco Biotechnology Corporation (NFBC), China. We are providing a point-by-point
response to all your queries along with some relevant clarifications/discussion.

FDA Query: (1) On page 7 of the notice under 2.1.4. Chemical Formula and Molecular Weight,
NFBC states the following:

“The molecular weight of scFOS is 700 daltons (Da), representing the average of the
molecular weights of its 3 components (505 Da, 666 Da, 828 Da, respectively),
respectively.”

Please clarify the average molecular weight, since the average of the three numbers given is
not 700 Da.

Response: Thank you for bringing this to out attention. We apologize for the confusion in our
calculations. scFOS is a mixture of sucrose (342 Da), 1-kestose (505 Da), nystose (666 Da),
and fructofuranosylnystose (828 Da). Based on scFOS composition from 10 batches listed in
Tables 2 and 3 of the GRAS notice (GRN 797), the average ratio of the above mentioned four
components will be 3.7%, 37.0%, 47.6% and 11.7%, respectively (please see below Appendix
). Therefore, the weighted average molecular weight of these components of scFOS is 614
Da. The details, along with calculations, are provided in Appendix I.

FDA Query: (2) Please clarify the type of ion exchange resin used in the manufacture of FOS and
whether it complies with a specific regulation or effective FCN.

Response:

Confidential Information Starts-

The type of resins used by NFBC are weakly acidic acrylic type cation exchange resins and
weakly basic styrene type anion exchange resin.

Confidential Information Ends.

lon exchange resins are widely used in a variety of applications including commercial,
industrial water purification, drinking water applications, food processing, and pharmaceutical
industries. Those resins are compliant with the FDA Food Additive Regulation 21 CFR 8§
173.25.
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FDA Query: (3) On page 16 of the notice, NFBC states the following:

“There are no other sources of FOS or fructans in the diets of formula fed infants.
Introduction of any foods that might possibly contain FOS or other nondigestible
carbohydrates would be at the expense of formula (i.e., to maintain the same caloric
intake, formula consumption would necessarily decrease as solid foods are added) and it
is quite likely that the result of introduction of other foods would be a net decrease in
prebiotic intake - certainly in fructan - including FOS, intake.”

The meaning of this sentence is unclear. Please clarify if the meaning is as follows; if not,
please clarify what the relevant statement in the notice means:

As an infant consumes complimentary foods, and therefore consumes less infant formula,
the level of FOS consumed will decrease due to the complimentary foods not containing
the same level of FOS as infant formula.

Response: Sorry for the confusion. The meaning provided by FDA is correct.

FDA Query: (4) The GRAS Panel members state that a literature search was conducted through
March 2018. Please verify if NFBC conducted the same literature search through March
2018. If not, please provide the date range through which NFBC conducted a literature
search.

Response: The NFBC conducted the same literature search through March 2018. Sorry for not
stating this.

We hope the above information and clarification addresses your queries. If you have any
questions or need additional explanation, please let me know.

Thank you for the opportunity to provide this explanation to your questions.

Best regards

Madhu Soni, PhD

Agent for: New Francisco Biotechnology Corporation (NFBC), China
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Appendix |

Determination of the average weighted molecular weight

Table 2 FOS-950-P (GRN 797) Table 3 FOS-950-S (GRN 797) Calculation
Parameters Stant_:le_lrd ; Lot Lot Lot Lot Lot Lot Lot Lot Lot Lot fgﬁgage mg:;%ﬁlar QZ?Q? g“;
Specifications | #17005 | #17006 | #18001 | #18002 | #18003 | #16001 | #16002 | #16003 | #16004 | #17001 | (g0 (Dalton) | (Dalton)
Total SCFOS (%) >95 95.7 96.4 96.4 96.5 96.5 95.8 96.3 96.7 96.1 96.6 96.3 614
1-kestose (GF2) (%) NLT 30.0 35.7 38.3 36.2 37.7 35 36.2 375 36.3 38.6 38.2 37.0 505 186.7
Nystose (GF3) (%) NLT 40.0 48 467 49 47.1 492 48.1 471 48 456 471 476 666 316.9
Fructofuranosylnystose | ;5 o 12 11.4 11.2 117 123 115 117 12.4 11.9 113 117 828 97.2
(GF4) (%)
Sugars (%) <5 43 36 36 35 35 42 37 33 39 3.4 37 342 12.7
GF2+GF3+GFa+sugar | 1O 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100
Carbohydrate
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
7Y U.S. FOOD & DRUG

ADMINISTRATION
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From: Madhu Soni

To: Morissette, Rachel

Subject: RE: questions to be addressed for GRN 000797
Date: Wednesday, October 17, 2018 12:04:45 PM
Attachments: image002.png

FOS GRAS IF FDA Query Response Final-R1.pdf

Dear Dr. Morissette,
As per our discussion, please find attached a revised copy of the response to FDA queries.
Hope thisis acceptable. If you have any questions, please let me know.

Best regards
Madhu

From: Madhu Soni [mailto:sonim@bellsouth.net]

Sent: Monday, October 15, 2018 2:49 PM

To: 'Morissette, Rachel' <Rachel.Morissette@fda.hhs.gov>
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
Soni & Associates In.

719 16" Square

Vero Beach, F1. 32968, USA

Phone; +1-772-299-0746; Cell: +1-772-538-0104
WWW.Soniassociates.net

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
industries. The ion exchange resins used by NFBC in the manufacture of scFOS are compliant
with the FDA Food Additive Regulation 21 CFR § 173.25.

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

U.S. FOOD & DRUG

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
I). Therefore, the weighted average molecular weight of these components of scFOS is 614
Da. The details, along with calculations, are provided in Appendix 1.

FDA Query: (2) Please clarify the type of ion exchange resin used in the manufacture of FOS and
whether it complies with a specific regulation or effective FCN.

Response:

Ion exchange resins are widely used in a variety of applications including commercial,
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

Specifications | #17005 | #17006 | #18001 | #18002 | #18003 | #16001 | #16002 | #16003 | #16004 | #17001 (%) (Dalton) (Dalton)
Total scFOS (%) >95 95.7 96.4 96.4 96.5 96.5 95.8 96.3 96.7 96.1 96.6 96.3 614
1-kestose (GF2) (%) NLT 30.0 35.7 383 36.2 37.7 35 36.2 37.5 36.3 38.6 38.2 37.0 505 186.7
Nystose (GF3) (%) NLT 40.0 48 46.7 49 47.1 49.2 48.1 47.1 48 45.6 47.1 47.6 666 316.9
Fructofuranosylnystose
(GF4) (%) NLT 5.0 12 11.4 11.2 11.7 12.3 11.5 11.7 12.4 11.9 11.3 11.7 828 97.2
Sugars (%) <5 43 3.6 3.6 3.5 3.5 42 3.7 33 39 3.4 3.7 342 12.7
GF2+GF3+GF4+sugar Total 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100

Carbohydrate
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